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Flggetlen Kényvvizsgaldi Jelentés

Az ANY Biztonsagi Nyomda Nyilvanosan MUkddé Részvénytarsaség részvényesei
részére

A konszoliddit pénziigyi kimutatdsok kdnyvvizsgalatarol készilt jelentés
Vélemény

Elvégeztik az ANY Biztonsdgi Nyomda Nyilvdnosan M(kddd Részvénytdrsasdg é&s
lednyvalialatai (eqyltt a ..Csoport”) mellékelt 2019. évi konszolidalt pénzigyi
kimutatdsanak a kdnyvvizsgdlatét, amely konszolidalt pénziqyi kimutatdsok a 2019.
december 31-i forduldnapra elkészitett konszolidalt pénzigyi helyzetre vonatkozd
kimutatdsbol - melyben az eszkozok €s forrasok egyezd végdsszege 20.473.410 E Ft,
a térgyévi dtfogo eredmeény 1.524.401 E Ft nyereség-, az ezen iddponttal végzddd
évre vonatkozo konszolidéit atfogd jdvedelemre vonatkozd kimutatdsbdl, konszolidalt
sajdt toke véltozdsainak kimutatdsabdl, konszoliddlt cash-flow kimutatdsandl,
valamint a szamviteli politika jelentds elemeinek &sszefoglaldsadt is tartalmazé
konszolidalt kiegészitd mellékletbdl All.

Véleményink szerint a konszolidadlt pénziqyi kimutatasok megbizhatd és valds képet
adnak a Csoport 2019. december 31-én fenndlld konszoliddlt pénzdgyi helyzetérdl
valamint az ezen idéponttal végzddo pénziiqyi évre vonatkozd konszolidalt pénzigyi
teljesitményérdl €s konszolidalt cash flow-irdl a Nemzetkdzi Pénzligyi Beszamolasi
Standardokkal - ahogyan azokat az EU befogadta - (LEU IFRS-ek") foglaltakkal
0sszhangban, valamint minden Iényeges vonatkozasban a szamviteirdl szol6 2000. évi
C. tdrvény (a tovabbiakban: ,szamviteli tdrvény™) EU IFRS-ek szerint dsszedllitott
konszolidalt éves beszémoldra vonatkozo kiegészité kovetelményeinek megfelelden
készult.

A vélemény alapja

Kdnyvvizsgdlatunkat @ Magyar Nemzeti Kdnyvvizsgalati Standardokkal dsszhangban
€s a kdnyvvizsgélatra vonatkozd - Magyarorszagon hatdlyos - torvények és egyeéb
jogszabélyok - ideértve az Eurdpai Parlament €s a Tandcs 537/2014/EU (2014. 2prilis
16.) Rendeletét a kozérdeklodésre szamot tartd gazdalkodd egységek jogszabalyban
eldirt konyvvizsgdlatdra vonatkozd egyedi kdvetelményekrdl (.537/2014/EU
Rendelet”) is - alapjdn hajtottuk végre. Ezen standardok értelmében fenndllo
felelGsséglink bdvebb leirdsat jelentésiink ,.a kdnyvvizsgalonak a konszolidait pénzugyi
kimutatdsok kdnyvvizsgalataért vald feleldssége” szakasza tartalmazza.

Flggetlenek vagyunk a Csoporttdl a vonatkozd, Magyarorszagon hatdlyos
jogszabélyokban és a Magyar Kényvvizsgdldi Kamardnak a kdnyvvizsgaldi hivatds
magatartadsi (etikai) szabalyairdl és a fegyelmi eljdrasrdl sz0l6 szabdlyzataban,
valamint az ezekben nem rendezett kérdések tekintetében a Nemzetkdzi Etikai
Standardok Testilete dital kiadott . K&nyvvizsqalok Etikai Kodexe"-ben (az IESBA
Kodex-ben) foglaltak szerint, €s megfelelink az ugyanezen normékban szerepld
tovabbi etikai eldirdsoknak is.
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Meggydzddésink, hogy az ditalunk megszerzett kdnyvvizsgélati bizonyiték elegendd
€s megfeleld alapot nyujt vélemeényinkhdz.

Kulcsfontossdgu kdnyvvizsqaldi kérdések

A kulcsfontossagu konyvvizsgélati kérdések azok a kérdések, amelyek szakmai
megitélésiink szerint a legjelentdsebbek voltak a targyiddszaki konszolidalt pénzugyi
Kimutatdsok A&ltalunk végzett kdnyvvizsgdlata sordn. Ezeket a kérdéseket az
konszolidalt pénzlgyi kimutatdsok egésze altalunk végzett kdnyvvizsgédlatanak
osszefliggésében €z az arra vonatkozo véleményink kialakitdsa sorén vizsgaltuk, és
ezekrdl a kérdésekrdl nem bocsatunk ki kiildn véleményt. Minden egyes alabbi kérdés
esetében a kdnyvvizsgélati megkozelitésink leirésa ebben a kontextusban tortént.

Teljesitettik .a kdnyvvizsgdldnak a konszoliddlt pénzigyi kimutatdsok
konyvvizsgalatdért vald feleldssége” szakaszban leirt feleldsséginket, beleérive az
aldbb részietezett kérdésekkel kapcsolatosakat is. Ennek  megfelelden a
kdnyvvizsgélatunk magaba foglalta a konszoliddlt pénziigyi kimutatdsokban foglalt
lényeges hibas dllitdsokra vonatkozd Kkockdzatbecslésink alapjan kialakitott
elidrésoknak a végrehajtasat. A konyvvizsgdlati eljdrasaink eredményei - beleérive az
aldbbi kérdéseket célzdan végrehajtott eljdrasokat is - nydjtanak alapot a konszolidalt
pénziigyi kimutatdsokra vonatkozd kdnyvvizsgaloi véleménylinkhdz.

Az izleti érték értékelése

A konszolidalt pénzigyi
kimutatdsokban bemutatott Uzleti
érték egyenlege 2019. december 31-
én 335857 E Ft, amely a
meérleqfddsszeg mintegy 2%-3t teszi
ki. Az Uzleti érték megtérilésének
vizsgdlata  jelentdés  becsléseket
tartalmaz ugy, mint az alkalmazott
diszkontrata, vagy a lednyvallalatok
eredményességének novekedési
rétdja. A Csoport vezetdsége évente
felilvizsgdlja, hogy szikség van-e
értékvesziés elszamoldsdra az EU
IFRS-ek eldirésaival dsszhangban. Ez
eqy jelentds kényvvizsgdlati terilet,
miutdn az Uzleti értékvesziés
felulvizsgdlata  jelentds  becslési
eljdrasokat tartalmaz.

A marster frm of Eval & Yourg Getal Limlac

A kdnyvvizsgalati eljdrasunk tobbek kozott
magéhan foglalta feltételezések és az
alkalmazott  modszertan  szakértok
bevondsdval végzett feldlvizsgalatat.
Ertékeltik a 70 adatok pontosségat, ugy,
mint a vezetdséqg jovobeni cash flow
feltételezésel, vagy az alkalmazott
diszkont- és  ndvekedési  ratdkat.
Egyeztettik a kalkuldcidban szerepld
varhaté pénzigyi adatokat az uzleti
tervvel, és értékeltik & multbeli adatok
alapjén. A jelentds becsléseket, Ugy, mint
az alkalmazott diszkontrata, vagy a
lednyvéllalatok eredmeényességének
ndvekedési ratdja a  szakértdink
bevondsaval értékeltik. Vizsgaltuk, hogy
az alkalmazott modszertan dsszhangban
van-e az EU IFRS-ek eldirdsaival és az
elézG évi modszertannal. Megvizsgaltuk,
hogy a  kiegészitd  megjegyzések
tartalmazzak-e a szikséges eldirasokat az
EU IFRS-ek eldirdsaival dsszhangban.

A Csoport szamviteli politikdt és a
kiegészitd megjegyzéseket a kiegészitd
melléklet 2. s 9. pontja tartalmazza.
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Egyéb informdaciok

Az egy€b informaciok a Csoport 2019. évi konszolidalt Gzleti jelentésebdl, amelyet
a kdnyvvizsqaldi jelentés détuma elétt megszereztiink, valamint a Csoport Eves
Jelentésébd! dlinak, amelyet vérhatdan a kdnyvvizsgdldi jelentés datuma utan
bocsatanak rendelkezésunkre. A vezetés felelds az egyéb informdciokért ideértve
az konszolidalt Gzleti jelentésnek a szémviteli torvény, illetve egyéb mds jogszabaly
vonatkozd eldirdsaival dsszhangban torténd elkészitéséért. A jelentésink
LVélemény"” szakaszéban az Kkonszolidalt pénzdgyi kimutatdsokra adott
véleménylnk nem vonatkozik az eqyéb informacidkra.

Az konszoliddlt pénzigyi kimutatdsok &ltalunk végzett konyvvizsgalataval
kapcsolatban a mi feleldsségink az egy€b informaciok atolvasdsa €s ennek soran
annak mérlegelése, hogy 1) az eqyeb informaciok Iényegesen ellentmondanak-e a
konszolidalt pénzigyi kimutatdsoknak vagy a konyvvizsgdlat sordn szerzett
ismereteinknek, vagy egyébként Uqgy tlnik-e, hogy azok Iényeges hibds allitést
tartalmaznak, valamint hogy 2) a konszolidalt Gzleti jelentés a szamviteli térvény,
illetve ha van, egyéb mas jogszabaly vonatkozd eldirdsaival dsszhangban készilt-e,

A konszoliddlt Gzleti jelentésrdl 52016 véleményilinknek ki kell terjednie a szamviteli
torvény 95/B. § (2) e) és 1) pontjai altal eldirt informécidkra €s nyilatkoznunk kell
arrdl, hogy rendelkezésre bocsatottdk-e a 95/B. § (2) bekezdés a)-d), g)-h)
pontjdban emlitett informdcidkat, valamint hogy a konszoliddit Gzleti jelentés
tartalmazza-e a szamviteli torvény 134. § (5) bekezdése szerinti nem pénzigyi
Kimutatast.

Véleményink szerint a Csoport 2019. évi konszolidalt Gzleti jelentése, beleértve a
szamviteli térvény 95/B. § (2) e) és f) pontjai dital eldirt informacidkat is, minden
Iényeges vonatkozdsban dsszhangban van a Csoport 2019. évi konszolidalt pénzugyi
kimutatésaival és a szamviteli tdrvény vonatkozo eldirdsaival.

Mivel egyéb mas jogszabaly a Csoport szamadra nem ir eld a konszoliddlt Gzleti
jelentésre vonatkozd tovabbi kdvetelményeket, ezért e tekintetben nem mondunk
vélemeényt.

Tovébba nyilatkozunk, hogy a Csoport rendelkezésre bocsétotta a szamviteli torvény
95/B. § (2) bekezdés a)-d) és g)-h) pontja szerint eldirt informdcidkat, valamint a
konszolidalt Gzleti jelentés tartalmazza a szémviteli térvény 134. § (5) bekezdése
szerinti nem pénzigyi kimutatdst.

A fentieken tdl a Csoportrdl és annak kdrnyezetérdl a konyvvizsgalat sorén
megszerzett ismereteink alapjan jelentést kell tenndnk arrdl, hogy a tudomasunkra
jutott-e barmely Iényegesnek tekinthetd hibds koziés (Iényeges hibds allitas) az
egyéb informécidkban, és ha igen, akkor a széban forgd hibds kozlés (hibads allités)
milyen jellegl. Ebben a tekintetben nincs jelenteni valonk.

Amikor atolvassuk az Eves Jelentést, ha arra a kovetkeztetésre jutunk, hogy az

lIényeges hibas allitdst tartalmaz, kotelesséqink az adott kérdést kommunikéini az
iranyitédssal megbizott személyek felé.

A mersder frm of Bired & Yourg Giobel Limes
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A vezetés és az irdnyitdssal megbizott személyek feleldssége a konszolidalt
pénzigyi Kimutatasokért

A vezetés felelds a konszolidalt pénzigyi kimutatdsok elkészitéséért és valds
bemutatasaért az EU IFRS-ekkel Gsszhangban, valamint a szamviteli torvény EU IFRS-
ek szerint dsszedllitott konszoliddlt éves beszdmolora vonatkozd kiegészitd
kdvetelményeivel dsszhangban torténd elkészitésésrt, valamint az olyan belsd
kontrollokért, amelyeket a vezetés szikségesnek tart ahhoz, hogy lehetdvé valjon az
akdr csaldsbdl, akdr hibdbdl eredd, Iényeqes hibads allitasoktd! mentes konszolidalt
pénziigyi kimutatdsok elkészitése.

A konszoliddlt pénzlgyi kimutatdsok elkészitése sordn a vezetés felelds azért, hogy
felmérje a Csoportnak a vallalkozas folytatdsara vald képességét és az adott
helyzetnek megfelelden kdzzétegye a vallalkozds folytatdsdval kapcsolatos
informacickat, valamint a vezetés felel @ vallalkozds folytatasanak elvén alapuld
szamvitel konszelidait pénzlgyi kimutatdsokban vald alkalmazasdért, azt az esetet
Kivéve, ha a vezetésnek széndékaban all megszintetni a Csoportot vagy besziintetni
az Uzletszerd tevékenységet, vagy amikor ezen kivil nem 3ll elétte mas redlis
lehetdség.

Az irdnyitdssal megbizott személyek felelések a Csoport pénzigyi beszamoldsi
folyamatanak felugyeletéért.

A kdnyvvizsgéldnak a konszoliddlt pénzigyi kimutatdsok kdnyvvizsgalatéért valo
felelossége

A kdnyvvizsgdlat soran célunk kelld bizonyossagot szerezni arrdl, hogy a konszolidalt
pénziigyi kimutatdsok egésze nem tartalmaz akdr csaldsbdl, akadr hibdbdl eredd
1ényeges hibds dllitdst, valamint az, hogy ennek alapjan a véleményiinket tartalmazo
fliggetlen kdnyvvizsgaldi jelentést bocsdssunk ki. A kelld bizonyossdg magas foku
bizonyossdg, de nem garancia arra, hogy a Magyar Nemzeti Kényvvizsgélati
Standardokkal €s & konyvvizsgdlatra vonatkozé - Magyarorszagon hatdlyos -
torvények és egyéb jogszabdlyok - ideértve az 537/2014/EU Rendeletet is -
dsszhangban elvéqzett kdnyvvizsgélat mindig feltdrja az egyéoként 1étezd |ényeqges
nibds &llitast. A hibéds allitésok eredhetnek csalasbdl vagy hibdbdl, és lényegesnek
mindsilnek, ha ésszerd lenet az a vdrakozas, hogy ezek nmagukban vagy egydttesen
befolydsolhatjdk a felhaszndldk adott konszolidalt pénzdgyi kimutatdsok alapjan
meghozott gazdasagi dontéseit.

Egy, a Magyar Nemzeti Kényvvizsgélati Standardokkal és a kdnyvvizsgdlatra
vonatkozo - Magyarorszagon hatdlyos - tdrvények €s egyéb jogszabalyok - ideértve
az 537/2014/EU Rendeletet is - 3sszhangban elvégzésre kerlild kdnyvvizsgélatnak a
részeként szakmai megitélést alkalmazunk, €s szakmai szkepticizmust tartunk fenn a
kdnyvvizsgélat eqésze soran.

A marsser fery of Err & Young Oickel Limes
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Emellett:

» Azonositjuk és felbecsiljik a konszolidalt pénzigyi kimutatasok akar csaldsbal,
akar hibabdl eredd Iényeges hibas dliitdsainak kockazatait, az ezen kockazatok
kezelésére alkalmas kdnyvvizsgalati eljdrasokat alakitunk ki &s hajtunk végre,
valamint  véleménylink meqgalapozésdhoz elegendd és  megfeleld
konyvvizsgalati bizonyitékot szerzink. A csaldsbdl eredd lényeges hibas allitds
fel nem tarésanak kockazata nagyobb, mint a hibdbdl ereddé, mivel a csalds
magaban foglalhat dsszejatszést, hamisitést, szandékos kihagydsokat, téves
nyilatkozatokat, vagy a belsd kontroll felllirdsat;

» Megismerjik a kdnyvvizsgalat szempontjébdl relevans belsd kontrollt annak
érdekében, hogy olyan kdnyvvizsgdlati eljardsokat tervezziink meg, amelyek
az adott korulmeények kdzott megfeleldek, de nem azért, hogy a Csoport belsd
k'ontrollja'nak hatékonysadgara vonatkozdan véleményt nyilvanitsunk.

P Ertékeljik a vezetés dltal alkalmazott szamviteli politika megfeleldségét és a
vezetés altal készitett szémuviteli becslések és kapcsolddd kozzétstelek
ésszerlségét.

P Kovetkeztetést vonunk le arrdl, hogy helyénvald-e a vezetés részérdl a
vdllalkozds folytatdsdnak elvén alapuld szémvitel alkalmazdsa, valamint a
megszerzett kdnyvvizsgélati bizonyiték alapjan arrdl, hogy fennall-e Iényeges
bizonytalansag olyan eseményekkel vagy feltételekkel kapcsolathan, amelyek
jelentds kétséget vethetnek fel a Csoport véllalkozds folytatdsdra vald
keépességétilletden. Amennyiben azt a kdvetkeztetést vonjuk le, hogy Iényeges
bizonytalansdg 3ll fenn, flggetlen kdnyvvizsgdldi jelentésinkben fel kell
hivnunk a figyelmet a konszolidalt pénzigyi kimutatdsokban 1évs kapcsolddd
kozzétételekre, vagy ha a kozzétételek e tekintstben nem megfeleldek,
mindsitendnk  kell véleménylnket. Kdvetkeztetéseink a  fliggetlen
kényvvizsgaldi  jelentésink  datumdig megszerzett  kdnyvvizsgalati
bizonyitékon alapulnak. Jovobeli események vagy feltételek azonban
okozhatjak azt, hogy a Csoport nem tudja a vallalkozast folytatni.

P Ertékeljik a konszoliddlt pénzugyi kimutatdsok 2tfogd prezentdidsat,
felépitését é&s tartalmdt, beleértve a kiegészitd mellékietben tett
kozzétételeket, valamint értékeljik azt is, hogy a konszoliddlt pénzugyi
kimutatdsokban teljesiil-e az alapul szolgdlé Ugyletek és események valds
bemutatasa.

p Elegendd és megfeleld kdnyvvizsgdlati bizonyitékot szerziink a Csoport
gazdasagi egységei pénzugyi informdcidira vonatkozdéan ahhoz, hogy a
konszolidalt pénzigyi kimutatésokrol véleményt fejezhessink Ki. Mi vagyunk a
feleldsek a Csoport-kdnyvvizsgdlat irényitasadért, felligyeletéért és
eredményéért. A kdnyvvizsqaldi vélemeényinkért kizardlag @ miénk marad a
feleldsséq.

Kommunikéljuk az irdnyitdssal megbizott személyek felé - eqyéb kérdések mellett - a
kdnyvvizsgdlat tervezett hatokdrét és Gtemezését, a kdnyvvizsgdlat jelentds
megallapitdsait, beleérive a Csoport 3ltal alkalmazott belsd kontrolinak a
kdnyvvizsgélatunk sordn 3ltalunk azonositott jelentds hidnyosséaqait is.

Ezen felil az iranyitéssal megbizott személyek felé nyilatkozunk arrél, hogy
megfeleltiink a flggetlenséglnkre vonatkozd relevdns etikai eldirdsoknak, és
kommunikalunk feléjik minden olyan kapcsolatot és eqyéb Ugyet, amely ésszerd
megfontolds mellett érintheti a fliggetlenséginket, valamint, ahol relevans, a
kapcsolddo ovintézkedéseket is.

Arreryter firm of Lt & Young Giobel LimBles

5/ 6 Oldal
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Building a better
working workd

Az irdnyitassal megbizott személyek felé kommunikélt kérdések kdzil meghatarozzuk
azokat, amelyek a legnagyobb jelentdséggel birtak a jelen idészaki konszolidalt
pénziigyi kimutatasok konyvvizsgalata soran, és amelyek ily mddon kulcsfontosségu
kdnyvvizsgalati kérdéseknek mindsiinek.

Jelentés egyéb jogi és szabalyozdi kdvetelményekrdl

Az 537/2014/EU Rendeletnek a kdnyvvizsgdldi jelentés kdtelezd tartalmi elemeire
vonatkozo eldirdsainak megfeleld jelentéstételek:

A kdnyvvizsgald kijeldlése

Az ANY Biztonsdgi Nyomda Nyrt. Kdzqyllése 2017. dprilis 6-an jeldlt ki minket a
Csoport jog szerinti konyvvizsgdidjdnak. A folyamatos megbizasunk teljes
idétartama a korabbi hosszabbitdsokkal €s megujitasokkal egyltt 3 éve tart.

Az Audit Bizottsdaghoz cimzett kiegészitd jelentéssel vald sszhang

A jelen kdnyvvizsgadldi jelentésben szerepld véleményilnk Gsszhangban van az
537/2014/EU Rendelet 11. cikkének megfelelden elkészitett az Audit Bizottsdghoz
cimzett, és jelen kdnyvvizsgdld jelentéssel azonos napon keltezett kiegészitd
jelentéssel.

Nem kdnyvvizsgaldi szolgaltatdsok

Nyilatkozunk, hogy az 537/2014/EU Rendelet 5. cikk (1) bekezdésében emlitett
tiltott, nem kdnyvvizsgdldi szolgaltatdsok nydjtdsdra nem kerlit sor részinkrdl a
Térsasédg €s az éltala kontrolldit vallalkozdsok felé, és a kdnyvvizsgélat elvégzése
soran teljes mértékben meqgdriztik a Csoporttdl vald figgetlenséginket.

A jogszabdlyban eldirt kdnyvvizsgdlaton, valamint a konszolidélt Gzleti jelentésben
vagy & konszoliddlt pénzigyi kimutatdsokban bemutatott szolgaltatdsokon
tdilmenden nem nydjtottunk semmilyen szolgéitatast a Tarsasédgnak és az altala
kontrollalt véllalkozésoknak.

A jelen fliggetlen konyvvizsgdldi jelentést eredményezd kdnyvvizsgdlat megbizasért
felelds partnere Bartha Zsuzsanna Eva.

Budapest, 2020. marcius 9.

Bartha Zsuzsanna Eva Bartha Zsuzsanna Eva
Megbizdsért felelds partner Kamarai tag kdnyvvizsgald
Ernst & Young Kft. Kamarai tagséqgi szam: 005268

1132 Budapest, Vaci ut 20.
Nyilvantartdsba-vételi szam: 001165

Jelen kdnyvvizsgaldi jelentést megfelelden aldirva, papir alapon is kibocsatottuk.

A maciser fim of Lrret & Young Olictel Limées
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018

In HUF thousands: Notes December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Current assets
Cash and bank 3 1,286,667 1,020,318
Accounts receivables 4 5,042,113 4,736,873
Inventories 5 2,961,307 3,518,687
Other current assets and prepayments
(without current tax receivgblg) / B 553,082 SN
Current tax receivables 6 76,816 75,689
Total current assets 9,919,935 10,288,916
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 9,162,166 8,549,889
Right of use 8 1,031,658
Goodwill 9 335,857 335,857
Intangibles 10 12,852 125,260
Other assets 10,942 4,528
Total non-current assets 10,553,475 9,015,534
Total assets 20,473,410 19,304,450
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payables 3,336,796 3,371,756
Short term part of lease liabilities 24 513,035 385,607
Provision 12 - 78,300
Iigé?ltietire Sayables and accruals (without current tax 1 1,878.179 729517
Current tax liabilities 11 693,075 607,291
Short term loans 13 4,895,692 4,887,493
Total current liabilities 11,316,777 10,059,964
Long term liabilities
Deferred tax liability 20 342,223 327,824
Long term part of lease liabilities 24 375,819 481,700
Long term loans 13 1,045,670 1,253,267
Derivative financial liabilities 25 55,501 38,133
Other long term liabilities 38,890 1,332
Total long term liabilities 1,858,103 2,102,256
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 14 1,449,876 1,449,876
Capital reserve 15 250,686 250,686
Retained earnings 16 4,987,621 4,875,431
Treasury shares 15 (455,048) (455,048)
Other comprehensive income 21 (40,092) (30,631)
Total owners' equity 6,193,043 6,090,314
Non controlling interest 16 1,105,487 1,051,916
Total shareholders’ equity 7,298,530 7,142,230
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 20,473,410 19,304,450

The Supplementary Notes are inseparable parts of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as at December 31, 2019 and
December 31, 2018

In HUF thousands: Notes FY 2019 FY 2018
Net sales 17 34,130,672 30,527,082
Cost of sales 19 (25,413,041) (22,488,366)
Gross profit 8,717,631 8,038,716
Selling general and administration 19 (6,452,635) (6,125,007)
Gain on sale of fixed assets 15,748 5,092
Foreign currency (loss) / gain 9,924 59,714
Other expense, net 18 (207,918) (125,798)
Operating income 2,082,750 1,852,717
Interest income 17,094 2,466
Interest expense (118,743) (103,018)
Profit before tax and non-controlling interest 1,981,101 1,752,165
Deferred tax income / (expense) 20 (4,410) (9,319)
Income tax expense 20 (454,568) (352,246)
Profit after tax 1,522,123 1,390,600
Other comprehensive income for the year 21 2,278 95,444
out of which: fair value effect of derivative
financial liability 29,635 GO
g:t of which: effect of revaluation based on IAS (17,368) 50,337
out of which: deferred tax recognized in other
comprehensive income (9,989) )
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,524,401 1,486,044
Profit after tax attributable to
Shareholders of the Company 1,273,287 1,139,695
Non controlling interests 248,836 250,905
Other comprehensive income attributable to
Shareholders of the Company (9,462) 71,492
Non controlling interests 11,740 23,952
Earnings per share (EPS):
Basic (HUF per share) 22 89 79
Fully diluted (HUF per share) 22 89 79
Dividend per share paid (DPS) 92 81

The Supplementary Notes are inseparable parts of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity as at December 31,
2019 and December 31, 2018

Issued
Capital

Capital
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Shares

Other
compreh
ensive
income

Non
controllin
g Interest

Total

January 1, 2018

1,449,876

250,686

4,904,329

(455,048)

(102,123)

1,166,959

7,214,680

Dividend paid (after FY
2017)

(1,168,593)

(1,168,593)

Dividend paid to minority
shareholders (after FY
2017 income)

(389,900)

(389,900)

Effect of revaluation
based on IAS 21

26,385

23,952

50,337

Profit after tax
attributable to non-
controlling interests

250,905

250,905

Other comprehensive
income attributable to
non-controlling
interests

(3,974)

(3,974)

Profit after tax
attributable to owners
of the Company

1,139,695

1,139,695

Other comprehensive
income attributable to
owners of the
Company

49,081

49,081

December 31, 2018

1,449,876

250,686

4,875,431

(455,048)

(30,631)

1,051,916

7,142,230

Dividend paid (after FY
2018)

(1,161,096)

(1,161,096)

Dividend paid to minority
shareholders (after FY
2017 income)

(207,004)

(207,004)

Effect of revaluation
based on IAS 21

248,836

248,836

Profit after tax
attributable to non-
controlling interests

17,896

11,739

29,635

Deffered tax effect on
capital instruments

(9,989)

(9,989)

Profit after tax
attributable to owners
of the Company

1,273,286

1,273,286

Reserves of CF hedge
transaction

(17,368)

(17,368)

December 31,2018

1,449,876

250,686

4,987,621

(455,048)

(40,092)

1,105,487

7,298,530

* Items of the profit and loss statement line ‘other comprehensive income’.

The Supplementary Notes are inseparable parts of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash-flow as at December 31, 2019 and December 31,

2018
In HUF thousands: Notes FY 2019 FY 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax and non-controlling interest 1,981,101 1,752,165
of which foreign currency (loss) / gain 9,924 59,714
Depreciation cost of fixed assets 7 1,177,051 1,121,166
Amortization cost of intangibles 9 112,406 11,864
Foreign exchange differences on the line of the 528 99 417
other comprehensive income '
Changes in provisions 142,594 (180,342)
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (15,748) (5,092)
Interest expense 118,743 103,018
Interest income (17,094) (2,466)
Operating cash-flow before working capital 3.499 581 2899 730
chanaes: . . T T
izzzgses in accounts receivable and other current 46 77,537 291101
Changes in inventories 5 416,037 (537,202)
a%:sjr;?ses in accounts payables, provision and 10 1,120,491 42,312
Cash provided by operations 5,113,646 2,695,941
Interest income (118,047) (102,438)
Interest expense 7,699 6,005
Taxes paid, net 18 (446,008) (340,456)
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,557,290 2,259,052
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,820,988) (2,200,179)
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 15,748 5,092
Development costs 9 - -
Changes in loans to employees (6,414) 234
Net cash flow used in investing activities (2,811,654) (2,194,853)
Cash flows from financing activities
Non controlling interest changes (195,265) (389,900)
Changes in short term loans 11 8,199) 1,727,543
Increase in long term debt 11 -
Repayment of long term debts 11 (152,671) (247,083)
Increase in capital lease liabilities 22 591,441 542,086
Repayment of lease liabilities 22 (569,894) (374,682)
Dividend paid (1,161,096) (1,168,593)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (1,479,286) 89,371
Changes in cash and cash equivalents 266,349 153,570
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,020,318 866,748
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 3 1,286,667 1,020,318

The Supplementary Notes are inseparable parts of the consolidated financial statements.

C OMPANY




BIZTONSAGI NYOMDA
SECURITY PRINTING COMPANY

C OMPANY

ANY

- XV £

ANY Security Printing Company PLC
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019

PERIIENETEI- NG

Halom utca 5, 1102 Budapest, Hungary | www.any.hu
Phone: +36 1 431 1200 | info@any.hu

All amounts in HUF thousands unless otherwise indicated.

Supplementary Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Dec. 31, 2019

1 General

ANY Security Printing Company Public Limited Company by Shares (ANY PLC or the Company)
is a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of the Republic of Hungary. The
Company operated as a State enterprise until 1992 when it was transformed into a limited
liability company (Rt.). The Company’s registered office is located at Halom u.5, Budapest,
District 10. The Company’s webpage: www.any.hu.

The persons authorized to represent the Company, and to sign the annual report: Gabor
Zsamboki, CEO (Address: 1028 Budapest, Csokonai utca 22). The person responsible for the
accounting services registered in IFRS: Tamas Karakd, CFO (Address: 1112 Budapest, Orség
u. 9/B). The auditor of the Company Ernst & Young Kdnyvvizsgal6 Kft. (Address: 1132
Budapest, Vaci ut 20.), registered statutory auditor: Zsuzsanna Bartha (MKVK: 005268)
(Address: 5900 Oroshaza, Rakoczi ut 25.). The audit fee in 2019 is HUF 18.1 million.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018 — based on the Company’s share book — the following
owners have more than 5% voting right or the following groups of investors own the Company:

FY 2018 FY 2019

Investor Votirzéi)right Owrz(()e/:)ship Votirz(g))right Owrz(e;:)ship

Owners above 5% share

EG CAPITAL LLC(*) 11.98% 11.62% 11.98% 11.62%
DIGITAL FOREST LLC(**) 6.97% 6.76% 6.97% 6.76%
QESS N ALFA SZARMAZTATOTT 7.43% 7.20% 7.43% 7.20%
Owners below 5% share

Domestic Institutional Investors 27.93% 27.10% 28.26% 27.41%
Foreign Institutional Investors 14.77% 14.31% 12.92% 12.53%
Foreign Individual Investors 0.40% 0.39% 0.42% 0.40%
Domestic Individual Investors 26.14% 25.34% 27.94% 27.09%
Management, employees 3.00% 2.91% 2.81% 2.72%
Treasury shares 0.00% 3.03% 0.00% 3.03%
Other 1.38% 1.34% 1.27% 1.23%

(*) The Chairman of the Board of Directors of ANY Security Printing Company PLC as owner of EG Capital
LLC has a further indirect ownership through Fortunarum Kft.

(**) Based on the AGM of March 31, 2014 the Tamas Erdds has been elected as a member of the Board of
Directors of ANY Security Printing Company PLC has indirect ownership.
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ANY PLC produces security products and solutions (tax stamps. stickers with security elements),
plastic and paper cards (document cards. bank and telephone cards. as well as commercial
cards), personalized business and administration forms, as well as conventional printing

products.

The consolidated subsidiaries of the Company at December 31, 2019 and at December 31, 2018 are

as follows:
FY 2018 FY 2019
Name of the Equit Share of Voting Share of Voting right | Classification

Company quity ownership right ownership 2
Gyomai Kner HUF o o o o
Noomda 21t 200,000,000 9948% | 99.48% | 99.48% | 99.48% L
Specimen Zrt. 100 'ggg 00p| 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% L
ANYpay Fizetési HUF o &
Megoldasok Zrt> | 50,000,000 | 100-00% | 100.00%
Lft‘:hno'progress . 0'33500 100.00% | 100.00% @ 100.00% | 100.00% L
ANY HUF
Ingatlanhasznosito | , joot o 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% L
Kit. 100,
é'gﬁe’ Services ) 0%8210 50.00% | 50.00% | 50.00% | 50.00% L*
;‘gﬁ DirectServ. | 35308 MDL | 50.00% | 50.00% | 50.00% | 50.00% L
g'(r)elgt S 578060'\:)0 50.00% 50.00% @ 50.00% 50.00% L
Slovak Direct SRO | 92%00 100.00% | 100.00% A 100.00% | 100.00% L

1Voting rights that entitle the holder to participate in decision making at the general meeting of the company

included in consolidation.
2 Fully controlled subsidiaries (L); Joint ventures (K); Associated undertakings (T)
(*) Classification as subsidiary is the result of the co-operational agreement signed by the co-owner of the

Company.

3ANYpay Fizetési Megoldasok Zrt. was merged into Specimen Zrt. on 31 StAugust 2019.
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2  Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (the “EU”). The Parent
Company, ANY Security Printing company Plc. prepares its separate financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards from January 1, 2017. Its domestic
subsidiaries prepare their financial statements in accordance with Hungarian Accounting Law,
while foreign subsidiaries prepare their financial statements according to accounting principles
generally accepted in their own countries, that are adjusted in accordance with IFRS from the
consolidation package through the consolidation process.

The consolidated financial statements are mainly prepared due to the regulations related to
listed companies based on the accounting act, so it contains reclassifications and adjustments
through which it complies with IFRS.

IFRS as adopted by the EU do not currently differ from IFRS as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), except for portfolio hedge accounting under IAS 39 which
has not been approved by the EU. The Company does not have any transactions which would
qualify as a portfolio hedge.

The reporting currency of the Group is the Hungarian Forint (“HUF”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets. The principal accounting policies
are set out below.

Financial Statements are prepared based on the assumption of going concern of the activity of
the Group in the foreseeable future.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of ANY PLC and its
subsidiaries after elimination of all intercompany transactions and balances, including unrealized
intercompany profits. Subsidiaries are those companies in which one company of the Group has
control over the subsidiary, so the company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability to effect those returns through its power over
the subsidiary.

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities of a subsidiary are measured in the consolidated
statements at their fair values at the date of acquisition. The interest of minority shareholders is
stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognized.
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets of a subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is included as intangible in the balance sheet, to which impairment loss is
calculated, if necessary. For the purpose of impairment test, the value of goodwill is allocated to
those Cash Generating Units (hereinafter: CGU) of the Group that probably will have positive
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effects from the synergies. Those CGU-s, to which goodwill is allocated are subject to goodwill
impairment test annually or more often if circumstances indicate any loss in the value of the Unit.
If the book value of the goodwill is higher than the fair value of the CGU, impairment loss is
accounted on the goodwill. The impairment loss decreases mainly the value of the goodwill
allocated on the CGU, then the remaining amount decreases the net book value of the CGU’s
other assets, in proportion of the book value of the assets. The goodwill impairment loss once
accounted cannot be reversed in the future. On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal. The goodwill
impairment calculation is based upon companies’ budgets containing more financial years.
Present value of net sales and earnings before interest, tax and depreciation are calculated to
the date of year end, using the companies’ expected net sales and earnings before interest, tax
and depreciation ratio as a discount factor. Thus enterprise values are calculated by using the
enterprise value based on the market share price effective on the date of preparing the financial
statements and net sales ratio and by using the enterprise value based on the market share
price effective on the date of preparing the financial statements and earnings before interest, tax
and depreciation ratio of ANY Security Printing Company Plc as a listed company operating in
the same sector, which are assessed by the Group in proportion of the ownership regarding the
proportional equity and accounted goodwill of the given subsidiary.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

The transactions between the associated enterprises, including unrealized gains and losses as
well as realized intra-group gains, were eliminated during consolidation.

The equity and net income attributable to minority interests are shown as separate items in the
consolidated financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank in hand, balances of bank accounts and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and the risk of their impairment is
not significant.

Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the cash flow statement the Cash and cash equivalents include cash and the value of bank
deposits, as well as other short term (a term of three months or less at the time of their purchase)
liquid investments, which may be immediately exchanged for the amount indicated on them, and
their conversion does not come with the risk of a change in their value. Statement of cash-flow is
prepared based upon the indirect cash-flow method.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value after making loss-in-value for any
obsolete or slow moving items. Cost is determined at standard cost adjusted to actual purchase
price at period end. For purchased inventories cost comprises purchase price, possible
additional customs, delivery costs, non-refundable taxes and any other costs related to acquiring
the inventory. For finished goods and work in progress, cost comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate allocation of manufacturing fixed and variable overheads.




AN Y BIZTONSAGI NYOMDA
ANY Security Printing Company PLC e
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements Halom utca 5, 1102 Budapest, Hungary | www.any.hu

Phone: +36 1 431 1200 | info@any.hu
December 31, 2019

All amounts in HUF thousands unless otherwise indicated.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Freehold land
is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method at rates calculated to
write off the cost of the asset over its expected economic useful life. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The rates used are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 5%
Machinery and equipment 14.5t0 33%

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication in accordance with internal or external
information that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the amount of such an
impairment loss (if any). If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss is recognized as an expense immediately.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets.

Right of use assets

The Group recognises its assets owned in connection with lease contracts as right of use assets
from 1st January 2019 based on the regulations of IFRS 16. Based on these regulations all
assets are classified as right of use assets which are owned or controlled through lease
contracts or long term rental contracts. As there is no guaranteed residual value or lease
payments due at the end of the contractual period, in the lease contracts of the Group, initial
value of right of use assets are equal to initial value of the lease liabilities. The Group has three
different classes of right of use assets. These are real estates, machineries and equipments and
vehicles and other equipments. Depreciation is calculated on right of use assets based on IAS
16 through the entire life of the lease contracts and long term rental contracts applying the
following rates:

Buildings 10.0% - 46%
Machinery and equipment 14.5% - 33%
Vehicles 25.0% - 33%

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
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estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with infinite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization is provided at rates between 16.7% and 33% per year.

An item of intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of intangible asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities of a subsidiary are measured in the consolidated
statements at their fair values at the date of acquisition. The interest of minority shareholders is
stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognized.
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets of a subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is included as intangible in the balance sheet, to which impairment loss is
calculated, if necessary. For the purpose of impairment test, the value of goodwill is allocated to
those Cash Generating Units (hereinafter: CGU) of the Group that probably will have positive
effects from the synergies. Those CGU-s, to which goodwill is allocated are subject to goodwill
impairment test annually or more often if circumstances indicate any loss in the value of the Unit.
If the book value of the goodwill is higher than the fair value of the CGU, impairment loss is
accounted on the goodwill. The impairment loss decreases mainly the value of the goodwill
allocated on the CGU, then the remaining amount decreases the net book value of the CGU’s
other assets, in proportion of the book value of the assets. The goodwill impairment loss once
accounted cannot be reversed in the future. On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal. The goodwill
impairment calculation is based upon companies’ budgets containing more financial years.
Present value of net sales and earnings before interest, tax and depreciation are calculated to
the date of year end, using the companies’ expected net sales and earnings before interest, tax
and depreciation ratio as a discount factor. Thus enterprise values are calculated by using the
enterprise value based on the market share price effective on the date of preparing the financial
statements and net sales ratio and by using the enterprise value based on the market share
price effective on the date of preparing the financial statements and earnings before interest, tax
and depreciation ratio of ANY Security Printing Company Plc as a listed company operating in
the same sector, which are assessed by the Group in proportion of the ownership regarding the
proportional equity and accounted goodwill of the given subsidiary.

Financial instruments

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date where the purchase or sale
of a financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or
loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair
value through profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS)
financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.



AN Y BIZTONSAGI NYOMDA
ANY Security Printing Company PLC e
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements Halom utca 5, 1102 Budapest, Hungary | www.any.hu

Phone: +36 1 431 1200 | info@any.hu
December 31, 2019

All amounts in HUF thousands unless otherwise indicated.

Fair value of financial instruments

The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in on orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair values of financial
instruments, consisting of cash, receivables, payables, and obligations under debt instruments,
equal to their carrying values.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For listed and unlisted equity investments classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, including redeemable notes classified as AFS, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

With the exception of AFS equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised. the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swaps, to hedge its
interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivative are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gain or losses arises from changes in the fair
value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash-
flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge
item effects profit or loss.

Taxation

The amount of company tax is based on the taxation obligation defined according to the law on
corporate income tax and dividend taxes, which is modified by the deferred tax.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred taxes reflect
the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the balance
sheet date, to realize or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. The conditions of
netting deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets are met, as deferred tax arises only as
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities under the legislation of Hungarian tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. At each balance sheet date, the
Group re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets and the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets. The Group recognizes a previously unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
The Group conversely reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or
that entire deferred tax asset to be utilized. The Company classifies the local taxes and
innovation contribution to corporate tax in profit and loss statement based on IAS 12
requirement.
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Treasury shares

Shares repurchased are included in shareholders’ equity. Premiums and discounts arising on sale of
treasury shares, and differences on repurchase, are credited or debited to retained earnings.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at the time goods are dispatched and services rendered by the Group, as this
is the point at which the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and services are
transferred to the customer.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is separated into five different product segment by the Group. The management considers
these product segments strategically important. These segments are monitored and these are the
basis of evaluating the performance. However, classification of turnover by product segments do not
mean that these products can be produced in a clearly separable way in terms of assets and liabilities.
According to this preparation of segment reporting under IFRS 8 is not possible.

Dividend and interest revenue

Dividend revenue from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably). (Dividend realized within the Group will be eliminated
during consolidation.)

Interest revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases

The Group recognises its lease liabilities based on IFRS 16 instead of previous regulation of IAS 17
from 1st January 2019. In accordance with that all liabilities are recognised as lease liabilities which
are connected to lease contracts or long term rental contracts. The Group measures its lease liabilities
based upon the present value of contractual net cash-flows, with credit interest rate available on the
market for the Group for similar periods using as a discount rate. The Group has no initial lease
obligations, no dismantling or removing costs, variable lease conditions and does not receive any
lease incentives. The members of the Group have no option to prolong the contracts neither in lease
contracts nor in long term rental contracts, though not even the lessor has the right to change the
lease conditions during the lease period.

The Group has no small value leases, has no sub-lease contracts and has no sale-and-lease-back
type transactions.

Lease interest is calculated on lease liabilities with effective interest rate method, which is recognised
in the comprehensive profit and loss statement on the line interest expenditures.
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Provisions

The Group is involved in a low number of ongoing legal disputes. Based upon historical experience
and expert reports, the Group assesses the developments in these cases, and the likelihood and the
amount of potential financial losses which are appropriately provided for. The Group recognises
provision in case when:

- an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;

- it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation; and
- areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are measured
at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue.

Government grants

Assistance by the government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity in return for past or
future compliance with certain conditions relating to operating activities of the entity. Grants related to
income should be recognised in the income statement on a systematic basis that matches them with
the related.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share data is calculated based on the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period excluding treasury held by the Company and employee shares. Fully
diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding
as calculated for basic earnings per share and as adjusted for giving effect to the assumed issuance
of all potentially dilutive securities. Net income is adjusted in the fully diluted earnings per share
calculation for any income or expense associated with the potentially dilutive securities.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (HUF) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are expressed in Currency Units using exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period.

From the foreign subsidiaries of the Group Zipper Services S.R.L. prepares (and Zipper Data SRL
prepared until 2016) their financial statements in Romanian Lei, Tipo Direct SERV S.R.L. in Moldavian
Lei, Direct Services O.0.D. in Bulgarian Leva, while Slovak Direct S.R.O. prepares its financial
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statement in EURO (presentational currency). The balances of foreign currency assets and liabilities
of the foreign subsidiaries of the Group are retranslated at the relevant MNB (National Bank of
Hungary) foreign exchange rate in the consolidated financial statements in the parent company’s
presentational currency (HUF), which is the functional currency of the Group at the same time. The
details of the conversion have been presented in table 27 Risk Management.

The effect of adopting new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards effective
from 1 January 2019

The following amendments to the existing standards and new interpretation issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the EU are effective for the current reporting
period:

e IFRS 16 “Leases” — adopted by the EU on 31 October 2017 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

e Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation — adopted by the EU on 22 March 2018 (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019),

e Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement —
adopted by the EU on 13 March 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019),

¢ Amendments to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” - Long-term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — adopted by the EU on 8 February 2019 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

e Amendments to various standards due to “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2015 -2017)”
resulting from the annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23)
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording — adopted by the EU on
14 March 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

¢ IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” — adopted by the EU on 23 October
2018 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

The adoption of these amendments to the existing standards has not led to any material changes in
the Group’s financial statements

New and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by IASB and adopted by the EU but not
yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are new standards, amendments to
the existing standards nor interpretations which are issued by IASB and adopted by the EU and which
are not yet effective:

e Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards — adopted by
EU on 6 december 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020),
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e Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and IAS 8 “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” - Definition of Material — adopted
by EU on 10 December 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020),

e Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”, IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” — Interest
rate Benchmark Reform — adopted by EU on 15 January 2020 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020).

The Group does not adopt these new standards and amendments to existing standards before their
effective date. The Group anticipates that the adoption of these new standards, amendments to the
existing standards and new interpretations will have no material impact on the financial statements of
the Group in the period of initial application.

Standards and Interpretations issued by IASB but not yet adopted by the EU

At present, IFRS as adopted by the EU do not significantly differ from regulations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) except for the following new standards,
amendments to the existing standards and new interpretation, which were not endorsed for use in EU
as at [date of publication of financial statements] (the effective dates stated below is for IFRS in full):

o IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016) - the European Commission has decided not to launch the endorsement process
of this interim standard and to wait for the final standard,

e IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021),

¢ Amendments to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” - Definition of a Business (effective for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur
on or after the beginning of that period).

The Group anticipates that the adoption of these new standards, amendments to the existing
standards and new interpretations will have no material impact on the financial statements of the
Group in the period of initial application

The Group anticipates that the adoption of these new standards, amendments to the existing
standards and new interpretations will have no material impact on the financial statements of the
Group in the period of initial application.

Hedge accounting for a portfolio of financial assets and liabilities whose principles have not been
adopted by the EU remains unregulated.
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According to the Group’s estimates, the application of hedge accounting to a portfolio of financial
assets or liabilities pursuant to IAS 39: “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
would not significantly impact the financial statements, if applied as at the balance sheet date

Critical accounting judgements and estimates by applying the accounting policy

The process of preparing financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities presented in the consolidated financial statements and the Notes.

Critical assumptions by applying the accounting policy

The Management of the Group had certain assumptions when applying the accounting policy, that can
influence the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities presented in the consolidated financial
statements (apart from the impact of the estimates. presented at the next point). These assumptions
are presented in details in the Notes, but the most important ones are the following:

- The temporary differences calculated with deferred tax liabilities will reverse in the
foreseeable future, and the corporate tax rate is 9%, which is effective from 1% January
2017.

- The outcome of certain contingent liabilities.

- Zipper Services Srl, and Direct Services Ood are subsidiaries of the Group although the
Group only owns a 50% ownership interest in these companies. Based on the contractual
arrangements between the Group and other investors, the Group has the power to appoint
and remove the majority of the board of management of these companies that has the
power to direct the relevant activities of these companies. Therefore, the management of
the Company concluded that the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of these companies unilaterally and hence the Group has control over these
companies.

Uncertainties in the estimates

The process of preparing consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities presented in the consolidated financial statements and the Notes. These
estimates are based on the best knowledge of the Management, in spite of this actual results may
differ from estimated amounts. These estimates are presented in details in the Notes, but the most
important ones are the following:

- Determining the fair value of Financial Instruments

- Determining the economic useful life of fixed assets

- Calculating the impairment loss on fixed assets and goodwiill

- Calculating provisions
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December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 1,286,667 1,020,318
Total cash and cash equivalents: 1,286,667 1,020,318

4  Accounts receivables

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Trade receivables 5,046,516 4,740,025
Allowance for doubtful debts (4,403) (3,152)
Total: 5,042,113 4,736,873

The carrying value of trade receivables is fair value. Balance of trade debtors is HUF 5,042

million, which is HUF 306 million (6%) higher than at the end of 2018.

Movement of the allowance in doubtful debts is broken down below:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,152 5,652
Impairment losses recognised on receivables 1,859 663
Impairment losses reversed (608) (3,163)
Derecognition of receivables as uncollectable debt - -
Balance at the end of the year 4,403 3,152

C OMPANY
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5 Inventories
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December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Raw materials 1,638,996 2,071,227
Work in progress 925,275 873,262
Finished goods 631,676 669,153
Goods 37,978 36,320
Cumulated loss in value for inventories (272,618) (131,275)
Total: 2,961,307 3,518,687

The total amount of inventories is HUF 2,961 million, which decreased by HUF 557 million (16%)
compared to 31 December 2018. The amount of raw materials and consumables decreased by
HUF 432 million (21%) compared to the prior period, caused by the lower raw material needs of
security products. The amount of finished goods decreased by HUF 37 million (6%) compared to

the prior period.

6  Other current assets and prepayments

December 31,

December 31,

2019 2018

Prepayments 165,419 457,423
Of which: revenue recognized but not invoiced 14,174 325,795

Of which: prepaid interest 26,575 23,089

Of which: rental fee of softwares 124,670 77,285
Guarantee receivables 237,354 336,639
Advances paid 81,261 82,394
Of which: advances paid for PP&E 78,062 78,062

Of which: other advances paid 4,332 4,332
Employee loans 12,802 3,282
Other receivables 56,196 57,611
Total other current assets and prepayments: 553,032 937,349

December 31,

December 31,

2019 2018
VAT receivable 68,746 49,958
Other taxes receivable 7,704 9,759
Corporate income tax receivable 366 150972
Total current tax receivables 76,816 75,689

Year-end balance of current tax receivables is HUF 1 million higher than in previous period.
Interest in employees loans are the same for each employee, Hungarian prime rate + 5%.
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7  Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and Mac;?}igery Property Vehg:tlﬁgrand Capital Total
buildings equipment rights equipments projects
Cost:
January 1, 2018 4,644,571 13,238,653 10,767 2,175,295 97,219 20,166,505
Capitalization 23,807, 1,054,290 20,166 485,022 2,180,653 3,763,938
Additions 2,255 496,602 - 75,791 1,563,119 2,137,767
Disposals - - - - 22,301 22,301
December 31, 2018 4,666,123 13,796,341 30,933 2,584,526 692,452 21,770,375
January 1, 2019 4,666,123 13,796,341 30,933 2,584,526 692,453 21,770,376
Capitalization 93,878 1,254,579 20,166 517,903 2,645,075 4,531,601
Additions - 638,551 - 77,645 1,374,816 2,091,012
Reclassification - 887,711 - - - 887,711
Disposals - - - - - -
December 31, 2019 4,760,001 13,524,658 51,099 3,024,784 1,962,712 23,323,254
Accumulated
depreciation:
January 1, 2018 1,390,621 9,625,234 10,767, 1,568,457, - 12,595,079
Charge for year 130,474 801,461 - 189,231, - 1,121,166
Additions - - - 0, - -
Disposals - 423,896, - 71,862 - 495,758
December 31, 2018 1,521,095 10,002,799 10,767 1,685,826 - 13,220,487
January 1, 2019 1,521,095 10,002,799 10,767 1,685,826 - 13,220,487
Charge for year 134,823 877,229 0, 277,405 - 1,289,457
Impact of IAS 36 i i . i . i
revaluation
Reclassification - 241,339 - - - 241,339
Disposals - 513,418 - 76,777 - 590,195
December 31, 2019 1,655,918 10,607,949 10,767 1,886,454 - 14,161,088
Net book value:
January 1, 2018 3,253,950 3,613,419 - 606,838 97,219 7,571,426
December 31, 2018 3,145,028 3,793,542 20,166 898,700 692,452 8,549,888
December 31, 2019 3,104,083 2,916,709 40,332 1,138,330, 1,962,712 9,162,166

Fair value of the PP&E exceeds book value, therefore no impairment loss was calculated. Real
estates owned by ANY Ingatlanhasznosité Kft. are on the line Additions in 2016. UniCredit Bank
Zrt. has HUF 1.400 million mortgage right on the real estates, covering the risk of the loan of
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ANY Ingatlanhasznosité Kft. Asset increase was mainly due to machinery and equipment
purchases in 2019.

8 Right of use

Rights of use
mOETEable | property s | Machnen and | vetioesand | tora
thousands of HUF)
Cost:
January 1, 2019 133,500 867,307 85,589 1,086,396
o e amioh impact 133,500 . 85,589 219,089
Additions - 190,613 169,664 360,277
Disposals - - - -
December 31, 2019 133,500 1,057,920 255,253 1,446,673
Accumulated
depreciation:
January 1, 2019 - - - -
Charge for year 61,615 256,646 96,754 415,015
of'”fg;"?g’h Impact 61,615 - 96,754 158,370
December 31, 2019 61,615 256,646 96,754 415,015
Net book value:
January 1, 2019 133,500 867,307 85,589 1,086,396
December 31, 2019 71,885 801,274 158,499 1,031,658

9  Goodwill

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Zipper Services SRL. 276,231 276,231
Gyomai Kner Nyomda Zrt. 26,994 26,994
Techno-Progress Kft. 20,509 20,509
Specimen Zrt. 12,123 12,123
Goodwill 335,857 335,857

C OMPANY

The 5 five year term budgets used for the evaluation of the goodwill are reflecting the management’s
best knowledge and information about the expected conditions of the financial environment. The
expected net sales revenue growth rate is between 4-6% based on the financial achievement and
market conditions. Discount rate used is 8%.
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Cost
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 335,857 335,009
Balance at the end of the year 335,857 335,857

Accumulated impairment losses

At the end of the year the Group examined goodwill’s remunerative value and recognized that
there was no need to account impairment losses on the goodwill.

10 Intangibles

Research and Softwares

development costs Total intangibles

Historical cost:

January 1, 2018 269,161 - 269,161
December 31, 2018 269,161 100,544 369,705
January 1, 2019 269,161 100,544 369,705
Additions - - -
December 31, 2019 269,161 100,544 369,705

Accumulated amortisation:

January 1, 2018 232,583 - 232,583
Amortisation 11,864 - 11,864
December 31, 2018 244,455 - 244,445
January 1, 2019 244,455 - 244,445
Amortisation 11,864 100,544 112,408
December 31, 2019 244,445 100,544 356,853

Net book value

January 1, 2018 36,578 - 30,578

December 31, 2018 24,716 100,544 125,260

December 31, 2019 12,852 - 12,852
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11 Other payables and accruals

BIZTONSAGI NYOMDA
SECURITY PRINTING COMPANY

PERIIENETEI- NG C OMPANY

December 31,

December 31,

2019 2018

Accrued management bonuses 240,662 47,950
Other accruals 252,465 162,446
Of which: accrued creditors 46,775 47,242

Social security 33,575 35,568
Salaries and wages 298,283 265,699
Advance payments from customers 977,123 47,861
Other short term liabilities 76,071 169,993
Other payables and accruals 1,878,179 729,517

December 31,

December 31,

2019 2018
VAT 365,551 403,107
Personal income tax 78,743 65,680
Social contribution 72,225 84,875
Other taxes 176,556 84,875
Total current tax liabilities 693,075 607,291

Total current tax liabilities, other payables and accruals amounts to HUF 2,571 million, which
decreased by HUF 1,234 million compared to December 31, 2018.

12 Provision

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

Estimated contribution and tax liability

78,300

Total provision

78,300
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13 Short term and long term loans

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018

Bank overdraft of the Parent Company 4,614,087 4,550,948

Total overdrafts 4,614,087 4,550,948
Short term part of long term loan of subsidiaries 197,563 197,563
Other short term loans of subsidiaries 84,042 138,982
Total short term loans and overdrafts 4,895,692 4,887,493
Long term loan of subsidiary 1,045,670 1,253,267

Total investment loans and borrowings 1,045,670 1,253,267

Total loans and borrowings: 5,941,362 6,140,760

The carrying value of loans and overdrafts is fair value. The Group has overdraft limit (market
interest rate, based on 1 month BUBOR) in value of HUF 7.3 billion from which the utilised
amount at the end of 2019 is HUF 4,896 million. Amount of the long term loan taken during the
purchase of ANY Ingatlanhasznosité Kft., that owns the real-estates was HUF 2,025 million, while
HUF 1,235 million was the year-end balance, of which HUF1,037 million was long term part and
HUF 198 million was short term part. For further details about the loan please see Note 21

contingent liabilities.

14 Share capital

Share capital (at par value, in HUF thousands) authorized, issued and outstanding at year-end:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Issued Treasury Issued Treasury
Registered shares 1,449,876 43,986 1,449,876 43,986
Total 1,449,876 43,986 1,449,876 43,986

The number of shares issued by the Company is 14,794,650 of which par value is HUF 98 per

share.

15 Treasury shares

Number of treasury shares held by the Company on 31% December 2019 is 448,842 which were
purchased at an average price of HUF 1,014 per share.

16 Retained earnings, non-controlling

interest

Retained earnings available for distribution are based on the unconsolidated financial
statements of the Company prepared in accordance with IFRS and related Hungarian
Accounting and Civil Law. The amount of the retained earnings in the Company’s IFRS financial
statement is HUF 4,987,621 thousands of which not distributable HUF 1,221,625 thousands.
Retained earnings available for distribution is HUF 3,765,996 thousands.
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Non-controlling interest is a part of the Shareholders’ equity, which belongs to the owners of the

subsidiaries other than the parent Company in the proportion of their ownership.

17 Net sales

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” - The standard is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model that will
apply to revenue earned from a contract with a customer (with limited exceptions), regardless of
the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The standard’s requirements will also apply to
the recognition and measurement of gains and losses on the sale of some nonfinancial assets
that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities (e.g., sales of property, plant and

equipment or intangibles).

Sales 2019 2018
Sales revenue from customer contracts 34,130,672 30,527,082
Revenue from other sources - -
Total sales 34,130,672 30,527,082
Impairment of receivables 2019 2018
Impairment recognized on trade receivables, contractual assets -
Impairment from other contracts -
Total impairment -
Sales segments 2019 2018
Security products and solutions 10,503,589 9,474,626
Card production and personalization 11,002,378 9,249,982
Form production and personalization. data processing 10,255,478 9,662,959
Traditional printing products 1,608,531 1,496,010
Other 760,696 643,505
Total net sales 34,130,672 30,527,082
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Total revenue in 2019 by countries:

Revenue by Countries 2019 2018

Hungary 21,491,663 19,456,851
Romania 7,553,241 7,023,781
Bulgaria 1,695,480 1,534,682
Germany 1,165,690 749,701
Africa 1,099,147 496,444
Slovakia 347,589 329,526
Austria 173,499 231,885
Norway 134,163 57,154
Czech Republic 128,588 161,595
Moldova 111,309 107,337
Poland 95,795 95,557
Finland 25,666 15,374
Iceland 21,726 21,083
Hong Kong 20,310 -
Croatia 19,433 -
Netherlands 16,027 9,743
United Arab Emirates 9,868 -
United Kingdom 8,300 18,246
Italy 5,072 15,436
Other 4,665 3,912
Switzerland 3,440 2,450
Sri Lanka - 98,927
Albania - 54,051
Kazakhstan - 29,992
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines = 2,437
Cyprus = 10,918
Total 34,130,672 30,527,082
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18 Other expenses, net

BIZTONSAGI NYOMDA
SECURITY PRINTING COMPANY

S T AT PERIIENETEI- NG C OMPANY

Other incomes and expenses 2019 2018
Received discount 38,628 11,874
Received subsidy 4,379 16,158
Reversed loss in value for inventories 3,340 3,709
Reversed loss in value for trade receivables 1,053 967
Reversed impairment accounted earlier to P&L based on IAS 36 - -
Derecognition of provision - 19 762
Other items 50,808 49,572
Total other incomes 98,208 102,042
Loss in value for inventories 148,410 47,317
Provision raised* 63,002 78,300
Permanent cash contribution 32,207 10,393
Building tax, land tax 28,271 30,351
Fines, penalties 9,205 28,341
Loss in value for trade receivables 147 663
Other items 24,884 32,475
Total other expenses 306,126 227,840
Total (207,918) (125,798)

The customers’ and inventories’ impairment haven’t been occurred in one
presentation of current years’ impairment and impairment reversal on a net basis is not

possible.

company so the

* Provision raised for innovation contribution, which was derecognised as tax decreasing item.
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19 Cost of sales and selling general and administration costs

Breakdown of cost of sales and selling general and administration cost is the following:

2019 (thHUF) 2018 (thHUF)
Material type expenditures 22,851,212 21,590,217
Personal type expenditures 7,716,303 6,505,247
Depreciation and amortization 1,289,457 1,133,030
Changes in inventory and own performance (8,704) (615,121)
Total cost and expenditures 31,865,676 28,613,373
Cost of sales 25,413,041 22,488,366
Selling general and administration 6,452,635 6,125,007
Total direct and indirect cost of sales 31,865,676 28,613,373

The average number of employees of the Group during the year was 1,026 (2018: 933).

20 Taxation

December 31, | December 31,
2019 2018

Current year local business tax 250,343 204,160
Current year corporate income tax 168,444 144,870
Innovation contribution 35,781 3,216
Current year tax expense 454,568 352,246
Deferred tax (income) / expense 4,410 9,319
Total tax expense 458,978 361,565

Based on the decision of the Hungarian Parliament, 9% corporate tax rate has to be applied for
the Hungarian companies from the calendar year of 2017. In case of the domestic subsidiaries
we applied the new 9% corporate tax rate when calculating deferred tax. The tax liability of the
foreign companies of the Group is taken into consideration with the effective tax legislation of
their country of incorporation.
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Under the tax legislation the Company is allowed to establish a tax-deductible development
reserve. Assets acquired using this reserve then do not qualify for tax depreciation up to the
value of the reserve. Therefore this is effectively a form of accelerated depreciation.
Development reserves have been established based on the Company's current year and
previous years pre-tax profit and a deferred tax liability has been recognized on the deferred tax
effect of the accounting and tax depreciation difference of the assets. The Company decreased
its deferred tax liabilities by the valuation difference for treasury shares based on the Hungarian
Accounting Standards.

Tax losses can be carried forward up to the next years offset future taxable profits (until its 50%).
Deferred tax assets relating to tax losses are netted off against deferred tax liabilities.

ANY PLC and its subsidiaries are subject to periodic audits by the Hungarian Tax Authority
(NAV). Since the application of tax laws and regulations may be susceptible to varying
interpretations, amounts reported in the financial statements could be changed at a later date
upon final determination by the tax authorities. In 2015 the Parent Company was subject to a
comprehensive audit by NAV (National Tax and Customs Administration) for the years 2010,
2011 and 2012 to all kind of taxes. No material misstatement was explored by the Tax Authority.

In line with IAS 12 Company reclassifies local income tax and innovation contribution to
corporate tax P&L line.

December 31, | December 31,

2019 2018
Opening deferred tax liability 351,910 343,458
Deferred tax liability due to development reserve 9,989 8,472

Deferred tax on accounting and tax depreciation difference of assets not

connected to development reserve 28 (20)
Closing deferred tax liability 360,953 351,910
December 31, | December 31,

2019 2018
Opening deferred tax assets 24,086 28,927
Deferred tax asset on write-off for bad debts (110) (27)
Deferred tax asset on deferred yearly losses (5,247) (4,814)
Closing deferred tax assets 18,730 24,086
December 31, | December 31,

2019 2018
Opening deferred tax liability net 327,824 314,531
Closing deferred tax liability net 342,223 327,824
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The effective income tax rate defers from the statutory income tax rate due to the following items:

December 31, | December 31,

2019 2018
Profit before tax and non-controlling interest 1,981,100 1,752,165
Tax at statutory rate of 9%(*) 178,299 157,695
Other permanent differences (9,855) (12,825)
Corporate income tax expense 168,444 144,870

* The foreign tax rules were not considered in this calculation. The differences from that method can be
find in row of Other permanent differences (net). In this calculation 9% tax rate valid in 2018 has been

applied.

21 Other comprehensive income for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year 31 December, 2019 | 31 December, 2018

Fair value effect of derivative financial liability 29,635 49,081

Revaluation effect of non-monetary SOFP items in

other currency than HUF based on IAS 21 (8] 50,337

Deferr_ed tax recognized in other comprehensive (9,989) (3.974)
income

Total other comprehensive income for the year 2,278 95,444

22 Earnings per share

Weighted average shares outstanding, net income used in the calculation of earnings per share
and calculated earning per share details are set out below: (humber of weighted average shares
and net income is the same both at ‘Basic’ and ‘Fully diluted’ EPS calculation)

December 31,

December 31,

2019 2018
Weighted average shares outstanding for: 14,345,808 14,345,808
Net income used in the calculation 1,273,286 1,139,695
Basic and diluted earnings per share:
Basic (HUF per share) 89 79
Fully diluted (HUF per share) 89 79

C OMPANY




ANY BIZTONSAGI NYOMDA
o g g S

ANY Security Printing Company PLC e
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements Halom utca 5, 1102 Budapest, Hungary | www.any.hu

Phone: +36 1 431 1200 | info@any.hu
December 31, 2019

All amounts in HUF thousands unless otherwise indicated.

23 Contingent liabilities

The Company has arranged bank guarantees. The guarantees largely relate to commitments under
Government and corporate tenders. Guarantees are provided up to a maximum limit of HUF 2,120
million. The Company uses HUF 504 million from its guarantee limit which is connected to tenders.

Real estates of ANY Ingatlanhasznosit6é Kft. secured by mortgage in favour of Unicredit Bank Zrt.
in the value of HUF 1,400 million, relating to this loan ANY Biztonsagi Nyomda Nyrt. provided a
guarantee to the Unicredit Bank Zrt. Furthermore ANY Biztonsagi Nyomda Nyrt. provided a
guarantee to the Unicredit Bank Zrt. in the value of EUR 0,7 million in connection with the credit
line agreement for the treasury transaction of ANY Ingatlanhasznosit6 Kft.

The Company reclassified HUF 624 million to the restricted reserves in 2013, in 2014, in 2015, in
2016 and in 2018 to finance future capital expenditures, which has not been utilised yet. Corporate
tax base was decreased by this amount in line with the relevant Hungarian regulations under the
condition, that this amount will be spent for capital expenditures in the following six years,
otherwise the deducted corporate tax has to be repaid to the Hungarian Tax Authority grossed up
with its fines and interests.

24 Short term and long term part of lease liabilities

Leasing liabilities Leasing liabilities Leeting Wetall s

expiry analysis (in related to real EllEiee 1o Legring lellliies Total
pIry Y machinery and related to vehicles
thHUF) estates ;
equipment
Expired leasing 57,343 390,669 65,022 | 513,035

liabilities in 2020:

Expired leasing
liabilities in 2021: 12,841 209,966 48,332 | 271,139

Expired leasing

liabilities in 2022: ) 48,085 44313| 92,399
Expired leasing
liabilities in 2023: ) ) 12,282] 12,282
Total: 70,184 648,720 169,949 | 888,854
N Leasing interest S
Leasing interest LeaS|_ng interest relating to Leasmg_ interest
A relating to real : relating to Total
analysis (in thHUF) machinery and .
estates ; vehicles
equipment
Leasing interest in
2019 2,098 8,865 4,414 15,377

The book value of the leased assets is fair value. The estimated present value of the minimum
lease payments equals to the book value of the lease liabilities. Fixed assets are the cover in
Group’s leasing transactions.
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25 Derivative financial liabilities

The Group hedged its variable interest long-term loan with an interest rate swap transaction that
matures at the same time whith the loan. The fair value of the interest rate swap was recognised as a
derivative financial liability in value of HUF 55,501 thousands in 2018.

The fair value of the derivative financial liability was measured based on market prices without
deducting transaction costs effective as at the date of the Statement of Financial Position. Based on
IFRS 13 Fair value standard it is a Level 1 measurement.

The derivative financial liability derives from a cash-flow hedge related to the long term loan. The
cash-flow hedge transaction contains an interest rate swap which covers the risk of variable HUF
interest loan. The cash-flow of the variable interest loan equals to the cash-flow of the interest rate
swap in each quarter until the maturity (until 2026), that means a 100% effective hedge accounting.

26 Related party transactions

Related party transactions FY 2019 FY 2018

— in HUF thousands in HUF thousands
Balance _of_ intercompany receivables and accrued 2.277.024 1,613,410
assets eliminated
I_3a|z_a_n_ce o_f _intercompany liabilites and accrued 2277.023 1,614,059
liabilities eliminated
Balance of intercompany revenues eliminated 1,265,846 1,243,302
Balance of intercompany expenditures eliminated 1,270,272 1,247,153

Related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. Through related party transactions mainly ANY Security Printing Company PLC (the
Company) sells finished goods to the other members of the Group, who resell them to third party
companies. Related party transactions also consist of short term intercompany loans and rental
fee for machineries. The Company purchased management services from EG Capital in value of
HUF 148 million in 2019.
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27 Remuneration of the members of the Supervisory Board and the Board of Directors

HUF 12,706 thousands remuneration was paid to the Supervisory Board, while HUF 6,120
thousands to the Board of Directors in 2019.

The following table presents the beginning and the end of the assignment of the members of the
Board of Directors, the members of the Supervisory Board and the senior officers. The number
of shares hold in ANY Security Printing Company PLC is also presented as at 31 December

2019.
1 - Assignment Assignment ANY shares
Type NET Position started ends owned (no.)**
BD Dr. Akos Erdés? Cha'ml‘a"’.‘” of Board of 1993+ April 30, 2023 2,195,253
irectors
. . . Deputy chairman of August 11, .
BD Gabor Zsamboki Board of Directors** 5005+ April 30, 2023 143,923
. . Member of Board of . .
BD Gyorgy Gyergyak Directors 1994 April 30, 2023 200,000
BD Péter Kadocsa Member of Board of | april 30, 2010¢ | April 05, 2019 -
irectors
. Member of Board of .
BD Dr. Gabor Kepecs Directors May 31, 2018 April 30, 2023 -
. x 3 Member of Board of .
BD Tamas Erdds Directors May 31, 2014 April 30, 2023 1,000,001
BD Erwin Fidelis Reisch Memtl)De_r of Board of May 31, 2014 April 30, 2023 -
irectors
e Chairman of
SB Dr. Tamas Sarkézy Supervisory Board March 30, 2007* | May 31, 2019 -
s A Deputy chairman of August 11,
SB Dr. Istvanné Gémori Supervisory Board 5005+ May 31, 2024 536,703
. Member of August 11,
SB Ferenc Berkesi Supervisory Board 5005+ May 31, 2024 -
Member of "
SB Dr. Imre Repa Supervisory Board March 30, 2007 May 31, 2024 -
. Member of . .
SB Dr. Janos Stumpf Supervisory Board April 19, 2011 May 31, 2024 -
. . Member of
SB Katalin Hegedis Supervisory Board May 31,2019 May 31, 2024 -
C s Member of
SB Laszlé Hanzsek Supervisory Board May 31,2019 May 31, 2024 -
. Member of
SB Gabor Kun Supervisory Board May 31,2019 May 31, 2024 -
Number of ANY shares hold, TOTAL: 4,075,880

! Employee in a strategic position (SP), Board of Directors member (BD), Supervisory Board member (SB)
2 Dr. Akos Erdés controls ANY shares indirectly through EG Capital LLC and Fortunarum Kift.

% Tamas Erdés controls ANY shares indirectly through Digital Forest LLC.

“ Dr. Istvanné Géméri controls ANY shares indirectly through BELU S.A.R.L.

* Re-elected by the Annual General Meeting held on 31* March, 2014

** Gabor Zsamboki has been the deputy chairman of the Board of Directors since 11" August, 2014.

** Number of shares shown above

28 EU subsidies

The Group has EU subsidy for purchasing special printing systems and developing workflow
management and on-line sales portal as at 31 December 2019. The EU subsidy won in amount
of HUF 89,387 thousands from which still accrued HUF 18,781 thousands. The initial cost of
capital projects were HUF 136,321 thousands, that have a carrying amount of HUF 36,768
thousands as at 31 December 2019.
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29 Risk management

Foreign currency risk

Among foreign currency transactions of the Group EURO based transactions are the most
important ones. Foreign currency liabilities mainly occur from raw material purchases, which are
hedged by the receivables from the export sales in foreign currency as a natural hedge. Due to
the balance of foreign currency receivables and liabilities the foreign currency risk of the Group

is moderate.

ANY Group Currency December 31, 2019 | December 31, 2018

Foreign currency receivables EUR 4,571,427 2,700,402
BGN 1,251,799 1,269,673
RON 26,312,885 26,312,885
MDL 971,824 971,824
DKK 78,827 26,753
SEK 53,808 19,555
usD 2,237 53

Total (in HUF thousands) 3,562,717 2,910,556

Foreign currency cash EUR 929,910 328,428
usD 456,375 140,155
GBP 731 1,889
BGN 1,140,192 1,145,509
RON 7,441,286 7,441,286
MDL 3,056,254 3,056,254
DKK - -
SEK - -

Total (in HUF thousands) 1,201,351 897,779

Foreign currency liabilities EUR 842,088 1,144,288
usD 39,412 8,465
CHF 7,963 44,208
BGN 950,855 657,977
RON 21,633,280 21,633,280
MDL 351,582 351,582

Total (in HUF thousands) 1,957,562 1,991,829

Impact of a possible 1%

foreign exchange rate

decrease in each foreign December 31, 2019 | December 31, 2018

currency (in HUF thousands)

Impact on foreign currency 47641 38,083

assets

Impact on foreign currency

liabilities (zhzre) (19,918)

Tota}l impact of possible 28,065 18,165

foreign exchange rate change
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The fair value of the financial instruments equals the book value. The Group holds no financial
assets held to maturity or available for sale.

Interest rate risk

Due to the moderate level of debts in the Group potential interest rate changes would not
influence significantly the amount of interests to be paid by the Group. Based on the balance of
Credits of the Group. a potential interest rate increase of 100 basis points relevant to our credits
would increase our interest expenses by approximately HUF 46,140 thousands in the year 2019.
(This was HUF 45,509 thousands in the year 2018.)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash-flows and by

matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
Liquidity risk of the Group, due to the high balance of net working capital, is low.
The maturity of trade payables, lease liabilities and credits is shown in the next table:

ANY Group In1 1-3 3 months 1-5years Over 5 Total:

FY 2019 month months - lyear years ’

Trade payables 3,315,539 18,375 2,309 573 - 3,336,796
Lease liabilities 42,753 85,506 384,776 375,819 - 888,854
Credits 357 | 4,891,739 3,596 | 1,045,670 - 5,941,362
Other liabilities and 1,506,182 389,903 ; 743 . 1,896,828
accruals (without taxes)

Current tax liabilities 639,704 27,142 - - - 666,846
Total 5,504,535 | 5,412,665 390,681 | 1,422,805 - 12,730,686
ANY Group In1 1-3| 3 months 1-5 years Over 5 Total:
FY 2018 month months | - 1year years ’
Trade payables 3,358,023 10,964 2,718 51 - 3,371,756
Lease liabilities 28,083 66,551 289,573 483,100 - 867,307
Credits 348 | 1,577,364 | 4,554,073 8,975 - 6,140,760
Other liabilities and 523,408 52,231 232,080 98 - 807,817
accruals (without taxes)

Current tax liabilities 595,521 11,770 - - - 607,291
Total 4,505,383 | 1,718,880| 5,078,444 492,224 - 11,794,931
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Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting
financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties, and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
costumers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing credit
evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

The financial discipline of the debtors of the Group is really good, which is also represented by
the low portion of cumulated provision on trade receivables compared to the gross amount of
trade receivables: 0.09%. (This was 0.07% in 2018.) The more than 90 days overdue
receivables out of total aged receivables of the Group is 1%.

30 Significant events after the reporting period

The Consolidated Financial Statements were accepted by the Board of Directors of ANY Nyrt.
on 9" March, 2020. The Board of Directors proposes HUF 89 dividend per share to the
shareholders on the annual general meeting to be held in April 2020.

Budapest, 9" March 2020 oot

Chief Executive Officer
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Analysis of the Group’s performance in FY 2019

Net sales of ANY PLC for 2019 amounted to HUF 34.1 billion which is higher by HUF 3.6 billion (12%)
than in the previous year. Changes in case of strategic product segments were as follows: sales of
security products, solutions were HUF 10.5 billion, which is HUF 1.0 billion higher than the figure in the
basis period; sales of card production, personalisation were HUF 11.0 billion, which is HUF 1.8 higher
than the figure in the basis period; whilst sales of segment of form production, personalisation, data
processing were HUF 10.3 billion, which is 0.6 higher than the figure in the basis period. Ratio of
strategic products segments in total net sales was 93% in 2019.

Export sales amounted to HUF 12.6 billion as at December 31, 2019, which is higher by HUF 1.6
billion than in the previous year, representing 37% export sales ratio.

Consolidated EBITDA is HUF 3,336 million, an increase of HUF 350 million compared to 2018 base
period.

Consolidated operating income is HUF 2,083 million, which is HUF 230 million higher than the profit
for the base period.

Consolidated net income after interest income, taxation, non-controlling interest is HUF 1,273 million,

which shows an increase of HUF 133 million (12%) compared to the previous year’s same period.

Earnings per share are HUF 89 in 2019.

Income statement analysis

The breakdown of net sales by segment is presented in the table below:

1. Table: Net sales by segments

0,

] i [ Caee

Security products and solutions 9,475 10,504 1,029 10.86%
Card production and personalization 9,250 11,002 1,752 18.94%
E;)or(r;spsrﬁ%uction and personalization, data 9,663 10,255 592 6.13%
Traditional printing products 1,496 1,609 113 7.55%
Other 643 761 118 18.35%
Total net sales 30,527 34,131 3,604 11.81%

ANY PLC had consolidated net sales of HUF 34,131 million in Q4 2019, which is HUF 3,604 million
(12%) higher than the sales for the base period.

Sales of security products and solutions came to HUF 10,504 million in Q4 2019 which means an
increase of HUF 1,029 million compared to the base period. The increase is due to the election ballots
printed with security elements and to the higher sales of the other documents with security elements

compared to the previous period.




ANY BIZTONSAGI NYOMDA

SECURITY PRINTING COMPANY
CO”SOlldated Bus'ness Report F ORMER STATE P RINTING COMPANY
for the year ended 31 December, 2019 o e S a1 1o0g | ooyt

The Company’s revenues from card production and personalisation totalled HUF 11,002 million in
the period of reference, a HUF 1,752 million increase compared to similar period of year 2018. Higher

volume of domestic and international document card sales is behind the change.

The Company’s revenues from form production, personalisation and data processing came to
HUF 10,255 million in 2019, a HUF 592 million higher than the sales for the base period. The change

derives from higher export sales.

Sales of traditional printing products amounted to HUF 1,609 million in the period of reference,
which means a HUF 113 million increase compared to the previous year’s similar period. Higher

volume of book sales is behind the change.

Other sales totalled HUF 761 million in 2019, which is an increase of HUF 118 million compared to
the correspondent period of the last year. This segment mainly comprises revenues from the sale of

commercial materials and goods.

Operating income came to HUF 2,083 million, an increase of HUF 230 million compared to the
previous period.

Gross profit totalled HUF 8,718 million, which means a 26% gross margin. General (SG&A) expenses
amounted to HUF 6,453 million in Q4 2019, which equals to 19% of net sales. Material expenses
amounted to HUF 22,848 million, higher by HUF 1,258 million in the current period due to the higher
turnover.

The capitalized value of own performance line shows the capitalized value of assets produced and the
change in inventories manufactured. These figures were driven mainly by the change in inventories in
both periods presented; the most significant of these is the value of work-in-production (WIP)
connected to security and card products.

Personnel expenses totalled HUF 7,716 million, which is 19% higher than in the base period due to
the increase in headcount, to the increase in wages and salaries and to the increase in performance
based wages connected to higher turnover. EBITDA amounted to HUF 3,372 million due to the
change in operating income and depreciation, which represents an increase of HUF 358 million
compared to previous period’s EBITDA. Therefore EBITDA margin is 10%.

Net interest income amounted to -102 million HUF in Q1-Q4 2019. Net income — after financial
operations, taxation and minority interest — came to HUF 1,273 million in Q4 2019, an increase of 12%
compared to the profit of the previous year’s similar period.

Earnings per share are HUF 89.
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Balance sheet analysis

The Company had total assets of HUF 20,473 million on 31 December 2019, which increased by HUF
1,169 million compared to the previous year-end.

Receivables amounted to HUF 5,042 million which represents a HUF 305 million decrease compared
to the 2018 year-end.

Cash and bank totalled HUF 1,287 million which represents a HUF 266 million increase compared to
the 2018 year-end balance.

Inventories totalled HUF 2,961 million, which is a HUF 557 million (16%) decrease compared to the 31
December 2018 figure mainly due to decrease raw materials.

Other current assets and prepayments amounted to HUF 630 million, which is decreased by HUF 383
million compared to previous year-end.

The balance of property, plant and equipment at the end of December 2019 was HUF 9,162 million,
an increase of HUF 612 million compared to the end of 2018 mainly due to the investment in the new
factory building.

Goodwill amounted to HUF 336 million which is the same as last year's balance.

Accounts payable totalled HUF 3,337 million, HUF 35 million (1%) lower compared to the end of
December 2018.

Other payables and accruals amounted to 2,571 million, which is increased by HUF 1,156 million
mainly due to the higher prepayments received from debtors and tax liabilities.

Lease liabilities relating to the purchase of fixed assets have a balance of HUF 889 million, from which
HUF 376 million is long-term part, HUF 513 million is short-term liability.

Long-term loan amounts HUF 1,235 million, from which HUF 1,037 million is long-term part, HUF 198
million is short-term liability relating to the purchase of the Company’s quota owning the real estates.
The Company’s operation is financed by short term loans which reached HUF 4,896 million on 30
December, 2019.
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Risk management

Foreign currency risk

Among foreign currency transactions of the Group EURO based transactions are the most important
ones. Foreign currency liabilities mainly occur from raw material purchases, which are hedged by the
receivables from the export sales in foreign currency as a natural hedge. The balance of foreign
currency receivables and liabilities are almost the same within the Group, therefore the foreign

currency risk of the Group is not significant.

Interest rate risk

Due to the moderate level of debts in the Group. potential interest rate changes would not influence
significantly the amount of interests to be paid by the Group. Based on the balance of Credits of the
Group. a potential interest rate increase of 100 basis points relevant to our credits would increase our
interest expenses by approximately HUF 48,957 thousands in the year 2019. (This was HUF 45,509
thousands in the year 2018.)

Liguidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash-flows and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Liquidity risk of the Group, due to the high balance of net working capital, is low.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting
financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties, and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk
of financial loss from defaults. Trade receivables consist of a large number of costumers, spread
across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the
financial condition of accounts receivable.

The financial discipline of the debtors of the Group is really good, which is also represented by the low
portion of cumulated provision on trade receivables compared to the gross amount of trade
receivables: 0.09%. (This was 0.07% in 2018.) The more than 90 days overdue receivables out of total

aged receivables of the Group is 1%.
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Supplementary information for the business report of ANY Group

The Company’s employment policy

ANY Group places high priority on keeping labour law, labour safety, employment, tax and social
insurance regulations connected to working. The Group considers the employees’ continuous training
and education as of strategic importance in order to ensure the renewal of professional knowledge
within the Group and the adaptability of employees. ANY Group gives wide scale of social benefits to
its employees, helping to create the balance between private life and the workplace. The principles of
benefits and wages are set out in the Collective Agreement. Besides keeping the regulations, the
Group is trying to create a workplace with proper working relations, taking the family obligations into

consideration which increases the Group’s profitability on the long term as well.

Environment protection

The parent company has 1SO 14000:2005 Environmental Control System certificate audited by Det-
Norske Veritas. The expiry date of the certification is January 11, 2022. The environmental certificate
covers the following fields: printed products, security products, documents, development, production
and personalization of plastic cards and bankcards. Research and development and production of
security materials. Electronic reprocessing and delivering of printed forms. Chip embedding and
encoding at smart cards. Research and development of traditional/general and mobile information
technology solutions, operation and support of connected services. Electronic archiving of data, data
processing, database management, setting up archives, storing of documents for fee.

Dangerous waste is continuously eliminated after leaving the company sites. In 2019, 23,136 kg
dangerous waste was transported and eliminated. The parent company has being awarded Green

Printing House Award for seven consecutive years this year.

Research and development

The parent company has two significant R&D areas:
1, R&D projects included in the activity of the Document Security Laboratory. The nanotechnology
project has a key importance in this area. Using nanotechnology in security inks may contribute to

drawing back forgeries and the fight against black economy.

2, The development of products has a significant role related to new tenders.
The direct cost of basic research, applied research and experimental development incurred in the

current year is HUF 68 million.
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Significant events after the reporting period

The Consolidated Financial Statements were accepted by the Board of Directors of ANY Group on ot
March, 2020.

Treasury shares in FY2019

2. Table: Treasury shares

Nominal value | Purchase value
o Number of
Description (HUF (HUF
shares
thousands) thousands)
Opening balance as at 1 January, 2019 448,842 43,987 455,048
Closing balance as at 31 December, 2019 448,842 43,987 455,048

Number of treasury shares held by the Group on 31st December 2019 is 448,842 which were
purchased at an average price of HUF 1,014 per share.

The Group’s total share equity was HUF 1,449,876 thousands on 31 December 2019 which consists
of 14,794,650 pieces of series ‘A’ registered, dematerialized ordinary shares with a nominal value of
HUF 98 each.

Competence, election and removal of corporate officers

Statutes effective from 31% March 2014 of ANY Security Printing Company PLC point 10.10 prescribes
the competence of the General Meeting, of which point ‘d’ regulates the election (simple majority of
the votes of the shareholders present) and the removal (three-quarters of the votes of the
shareholders present) of the corporate officers (Members of the Board of Directors, Members of the
Supervisory Board or Members of the Audit Committee).

Competence and operation is regulated in point 12 of the Statutes for the Board of Directors is, while
point 14 for the Supervisory Board and point 15 for the Audit Committee.

Purchase of treasury shares is regulated by point 9.3 of Statutes, according to which General Meeting
authorises the Board of Directors for purchasing treasury shares of the Company by simple majority of
the votes of the shareholders present. The Board of Directors authorises the management for
purchasing treasury shares of the Company by simple majority of the votes of the Board members
present. The regulation effective at present in connection with purchasing treasury shares is the
General Meeting Resolution No 11/2015 (20th April).

Statutes effective of the ANY Security Printing Company PLC can be found on the website of the

Company under the link of Investors.

(https://www.any.hu/wp-content/files mf/1557324630ANY _Statutes 20190408.pdf)




ANY BIZTONSAGI NYOMDA

SECURITY PRINTING COMPANY
Consolldated Bus'ness Report F ORMER STATE PRINTING COMPANY
fOI‘ the year ended 31 December 2019 Halom utca 5, 1102 Budapest, Hungary | www.any.hu

Phone: +36 1 431 1200 | info@any.hu

Modification of the Statutes

Statutes effective from 31%' March 2014 of ANY Security Printing Company PLC point 10.10 prescribes
the competence of the General Meeting, of which point ‘a’ regulates the modification of the Statutes,
which is connected to three-quarters of the votes of the shareholders present.

Statutes effective of the ANY Security Printing Company PLC can be found on the website of the

Company under the link of Investors.

(https://www.any.hu/wp-content/files mf/1557324630ANY Statutes 20190408.pdf)

Structure of shareholders over 5% share

3. Table: Structure of shareholders

Investor Votir(I(?A))right Owrz;a/:)ship
Owners above 5% share

EG CAPITAL LLC(*) 11.98% 11.62%
DIGITAL FOREST LLC(**) 6.97% 6.76%
AEGON ALFA SZARMAZTATOTT ALAP 7.43% 7.20%
Owners below 5% share

Domestic Institutional Investors 28.26% 27.41%
Foreign Institutional Investors 12.92% 12.53%
Foreign Individual Investors 0.42% 0.40%
Domestic Individual Investors 27.94% 27.09%
Management, employees 2.81% 2.72%
Treasury shares 0.00% 3.03%
Other 1.27% 1.23%

(*) The Chairman of the Board of Directors of ANY Security Printing Company PLC as owner of EG Capital LLC
has a further indirect ownership through Fortunarum Kft (3.22%).

(**) Indirect ownership of Tamas Erdés, member of the Board of Directors of ANY Security Printing Company PLC
based on the AGM held on 31* March, 2014.

Budapest, 9" March 2020 oot

Chief Executive Officer




